
Meeting papers

Pension Board

Thursday 21 July 2022 at 10.00 am

Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting





    

Pension Board

Thursday 21 July 2022 at 10.00 am

Virtual MeetingVirtual Meeting - Web ex meeting

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES Andrea Griffiths

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST Andrea Griffiths

3  PENSION BOARD NOTES (Pages 1 - 4)

As the previous meeting was not quorate, the Board is asked to receive 
notes of the 27th April 2022..  

Andrea Griffiths

4  PENSION COMMITTEE DRAFT MINUTES (Pages 5 - 10)

The Board is asked to note the draft Pension Committee minutes from the 
meeting held on the 16th June 2022.

Andrea Griffiths

5  GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLEY UPDATE - 
PART 1 (Pages 11 - 68)

The Board is asked to note the position of the fund.

Matthew 
Trebilcock

6  RISK REGISTER (Pages 69 - 78)

The Board is asked to note the Risk Register.  

Matthew 
Trebilcock

7  BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 (Pages 79 - 84)

The Board is asked to provide any feedback on the draft Annual Report 
approve the Board Annual Report 2021-22.  

Matthew 
Trebilcock

8  EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda 
items, because it is likely that if members of the public were present there 
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information to the public.

Sean Collins



    

9  DRAFT EXEMPT MINUTES OF PENSION COMMITTEE (Pages 85 - 92)

The Board is asked to note the draft exempt minutes of the previous 
Pension Committee meeting.

Andrea Griffiths

10  GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 
2 (Pages 93 - 112)

The Board is asked to note the report.

Matthew 
Trebilcock

Membership –  Cllr Stephen Hirst ,Annette Benson (Gloucestershire University/Employer Rep), 
Sean Collins (Head of Pensions, Oxfordshire County Council) and Jon Topping (Head of Finance, 
Gloucester City Counc/ Member Representative)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer 
(Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Stephen Bace, Senior Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny Team)
:01452 324204 /fax: 425850/e-mail: stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is permitted subject 
to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please contact Democratic Services (tel 
01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of 
the public and do not wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services 
Officer on duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.clarke@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

PENSION BOARD
Notes of the meeting of the Pension Board held on Wednesday 27 April 2022 
commencing at 10.00 am at the Virtual Meeting - Web ex meeting.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Annette Benson
Cllr Stephen Hi  rst 

Sean Collins

Substitutes:

Apologies: John Abbott, Michael Hunt and Jon Topping

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.

12. PENSION BOARD MINUTES 

That the Pension Board Minutes were noted as a correct record.

13. PENSION COMMITTEE DRAFT MINUTES 

The Board noted the Pension Committee draft minutes.

14. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 1 

The Head of Pensions presented the report which summarised the Fund’s funding 
position, market value, asset allocation, investment performance for the quarter 
ending 31 December 2021.

Members noted that by the end of the quarter to 31 December 2021, the Fund’s 
total market value increased by £126.733m, to £3,226.748m and over the quarter, 
total Fund assets produced a positive return of 4.1%, compared to a target of 4.3%, 
slightly underperforming the strategic benchmark by 0.2%. It was reported that 
performance over the 3 years to 31 December 2021 was 12.3% ahead of the 
benchmark by 0.9%.

The Board noted the fund was in a positive position at the quarter end.  

The Head of Pensions explained the annual Responsible Investment and 
Stewardship outcomes report would provide greater information on the 
effectiveness and outcomes of the voting and engagement undertaken and would  
include case studies. The report for 2021 was currently being prepared by Brunel 
and this would be issued to all Committee and Board members in due course.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

In terms of Fund Administration and as the service emerges from the pandemic, the 
intention was to work towards implementing agile working for the team, as per GCC 
guidelines, which would see greater flexibility across the team, but would result in a 
major change to the overall teams working behaviours that were in place prior to 
the pandemic.   A recruitment process was underway, in order to assist with the 
increased volume of activity  levels.   

The Board noted the report in accordance with the regulations, the Funds position 
and activities as at 31 December 2021.

15. RISK REGISTER 

The Head of Pensions explained that in accordance with the Risk Management 
policy agreed by Committee on 3 December 2021, progress and activity in 
managing risks would be monitored and recorded on a risk register and key 
information would be provided on a quarterly basis to the Pension Committee and 
the Pension Board, as part of the regular update reports on governance, 
investments and funding, and administration and communications.

In addition, as part of the agreed risk management policy there was a new risk 
register format which would provide a dashboard (heat map) overview of the risks in 
the following 3 categories: 
• • Governance 
• • Funding & Investment Risks 
• • Administration & Communication Risks (Operational) 

Members were advised that the risks had been reviewed against previous rating 
and there were no material changes to risk levels since the Committee considered 
the risk register at its last meeting in December 2021. The Board found the heat 
map useful as they felt it focused their attention and they were pleased to see there 
were no red ratings.   

The Board were advised that Governance Risk number 9 header was amended to 
‘Climate Change & Stranded Assets’, including Environmental ESG issues.  

The Board noted the Risk Register and the current elevated risks, as outlined in the 
report.

16. FUND BUSINESS PLAN 2022/23 

The Head of the Pensions explained that the Fund’s Business Plan 2022/23, as set 
out in Appendix 1 of the report, covered the Funds objectives, key areas of activity 
and budget for 2022/23. 

The Head of Pensions explained for 2022/23 it was agreed by the Pension 
Committee to focus on 4 key areas in addition to the normal activities of the Fund. 
The core projects were summarised as follows:  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

• 2022 actuarial valuation and associated activities 
• Pensions administration system contract review/renewal 
• Pensions Dashboard (including a data improvement strategy) 
• McCloud  

The Head of Pensions explained that the majority of the Funds Administrative and 
Oversight & Governance underspend related to the level of vacancies in the team 
during the year. The recruitment of these posts had been delayed due to the 
pandemic.   This was also reflected in the IT underspend in relation to required 
equipment and licences. The underspend in actuarial fees would be reflected in an 
increase in the 2022/23 budget, as this was based on the additional activities on the 
valuation process and fees were levied as the project progresses. 

In response to a question, members were advised that the Pension Fund had 
access to a LGPS Framework, which contained a pre-procured framework of 
providers, which was beneficial as the market providers were of limited availability.  
The Head of Pensions hoped this process would be completed within twelve 
months. During the discussion, it was suggested that the key project risks should be 
identified on the Risk Register in order to keep them front and centre.  

The Board requested to receive regular updates on the implementation programme 
to ensure the process was being managed effectively.  In response to a question, it 
was noted that the key projects wold undoubtedly place more pressure on the 
administration team.  Hence the need to recruit to these posts as a priority, it was 
noted the service was playing catch up as they had been under resourced for some 
time.  

The Officer hoped that with the introduction of a member self-service dashboard, 
some of the burden could be removed from the administration team.  

The Board noted the Business Plan for 2022/23 and noted the current outturn 
position of the 2021/22 business plan.  

17. 2019 VALUATION - PUBLIC SERVICE PENSION ACT 2013, SECTION 13 
REPORT 

The Committee received a detailed presentation from the Actuary, Hymans 
Robertson, it was noted that under Section 13 of the Public Service Pensions Act 
the Department of Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC) appointed the 
Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) to carry out a review of the LGPS local 
funding valuations.

Hymans Robertson had submitted data and information regarding the 2019 
valuation on the Fund’s behalf to GAD and they used this data, along with data from 
the other LGPS Funds to carry out their analysis.  It was noted that GAD published 
their report on the 2019 valuations on 16 December 2021. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Members were advised that the provided an overview of the general results from 
the section 13 exercise and importantly the Fund specific outcomes for 
Gloucestershire.

The Board noted the outcome of the 2019 Valuation Public Service Pensions Act 
2013, Section 13 report in relation to the Gloucestershire Pension Fund.

18. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, because it is 
likely that if members of the public were present there would be disclosure to them 
of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the 
Act and the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information to the public.

19. EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PENSION COMMITTEE 

The Board noted the Pension Committee draft exempt minutes.

20. 2022 VALUATIONS - ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 

The Board received a detailed presentation from the Julie West, Actuary, Hymans 
Robertson as part of the preparation for the 2022 valuation.   

That the Board noted the assumptions for the 2022 valuation as set out in the 
report.

21. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 2 

The Head of Pensions presented the report and explained that the report was 
designed to be read in conjunction with the Part 1 report, which provided more 
detailed analysis and commentary on the Fund’s asset allocation, investment 
performance for the quarter ending 31 December 2021.

The Board noted the detailed performance reports for the quarter ending 31 
December 2021 and the employer, Brunel and future investment activities of the 
Fund.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.30 am

Page 4



- 1 -

PENSION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Committee held on Thursday 16 June 2022 
commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Wendy Thomas
Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Cllr David Brown

Peter Clark
Cllr David Gray
Cllr Dr Andrew Miller

Apologies: Cllr Matt Babbage and Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington

In Attendance: Matthew Trebilcock (Head of Pensions), Alastair Rush (Head of 
Finance), John Arthur (independent Advisor) and Andrea Griffiths.  

58. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

Councillor Stowe was duly elected as  Chairperson for the ensuing civic year.

59. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 

Councillor Brown was duly elected as Vice-Chairperson for the ensuing civic year.

60. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

No declarations of interest were made.  

61. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

One public question had been received and the response was tabled at the 
meeting.  

62. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

No member questions were received.  

63. PENSION COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Resolved 

That the minutes of the 3rd March 2022 were approved as a correct record.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

64. PENSION BOARD DRAFT NOTES 

It was noted that the Pension Board meeting was not quorate, so notes of the 
meeting were taken.

The Committee received the notes of the meeting held on the 27th April 2022.  

65. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLY UPDATE - PART 1 

The Head of Pensions presented the report which summarised the Fund’s funding 
position, market value, asset allocation, investment performance for the quarter 
ending 31 March 2022.

Members noted that by the end of the quarter to 31 March 2022, the Fund’s total 
market value had decreased by £120.655m, to £3,106.093m and over the quarter, 
total Fund assets produced a negative return of -3.8%, compared to a target of -
1.5%, underperforming the strategic benchmark by 2.3%. It was reported that 
performance over the 3 years to 31 March 2022 was 8.3% annualised slightly 
behind the benchmark by 0.2%.

The Head of Pensions explained that Fund Administration remained challenging 
and he explained that two Group Pension Leader posts had been appointed to 
internal candidates, providing career progression. Their posts will now require 
backfilling, so currently no actual additional resources have been introduced into 
the team. 

Members were also advised that the Pensions Administration Manager had applied 
for and been granted flexible retirement as of November 2022 and he would be 
actively working on the triennial valuation from now until November 2022.  The 
Head of Pensions explained it was vital in retaining the Manager’s knowledge at 
this time within the service. It was noted that currently the performance statistics 
were not meeting their targets. The Head of Pensions advised that the team current 
focus was on delivering an equal service to all members of the fund and this can be 
seen by the average case time only being marginally outside of the performance 
target. This situation will improve with the addition of the new resources agreed by 
Committee, but it was advised that the onboarding and upskilling of new recruits 
into the technical nature of the work of the team and LGPS regulations will take 
time, before it will result in improvements in the key performance indicators.

The Committee noted the Taskforce for Climate related Financial Disclosure 
(TCFD) consultation document is now due in the Autumn 2022.  It was explained 
there a number of core projects were tracking the 2022/23 business plan and these 
were detailed within the report.  

During the discussion it was noted that an Employer Representative had been 
recruited to the Pension Board and the appointment process for the Employer 
Representative position on the Committee was currently underway.  

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Members raised concerns regarding the Pension Fund Administration figure of 
90%, they felt this figure was unrealistic as it hadn’t been achieved for over six 
years.  The Committee wondered if agile working had impacted this figure.  The 
Head of Pensions referred to year prior to the pandemic and he explained that the 
service had been under resourced for a considerable amount of time and it would 
undoubtedly take time to bring in staffing resources as individual’s knowledge 
needed to be built upon as it was a complex area of work.  He advised the 
committee that the issues cannot be resolved just by appointing new staff as it 
would take six to 12 months to see these additional resources being in a position to 
aide improvement due to the training and upskilling required This is a key area of 
focus for the Head of Pensions He did also advise that currently no breaches of the 
statutory requirements    

It was noted there would also be upcoming additional pressures on the 
administration team in terms of the McCloud ruling and this would require a 
considerable amount of manual intervention at times.  Officers explained he was 
aware of other funds who were operating at similar KPI levels, however many had 
taken the decision to reduce their targets in response to the pandemic and these 
remain at reduced levels.  

The Chair sought reassurance that newly appointed staff would receive direct 
training on a one to one in person basis.  The Head of Pensions confirmed that 
would the case, he reiterated that the pension administration team had worked on a 
rota basis in the office throughout the pandemic and they continued to do so.  

In response to a question, the Head of Pensions confirmed that all statutory 
timeframes as prescribed by regulation where being met. Some member felt there 
were no point of the KPI as they were aspirational targets and unrealistic in the 
current climate.

During the discussion it was suggested that IT software could help mitigate some of 
the issues.  It was noted there were a small number of pension software suppliers 
nationally and GCC currently used the services of one of the main provider.  
Members were informed that staff manually checked the calculations for accuracy 
and didn’t just rely on the output from the software and they should be commended 
on their efforts and accuracy, as this reduces the scope for errors and potential 
complaints.  The Committee were advised that an IT procurement exercise was 
currently being undertaken as is one of the key core projects contained in the 
Business Plan for 2022/23.  

Members referred to Brunel’s poor performance on equities compared to the 
benchmarks.  The IA agreed it was a fair point and that oil, gas and commodities 
had performed well this quarter while the majority of our sectors fell.  It was noted 
that the vast majority of portfolios hadn’t performed very well this quarter, as given 
the drive to reduce carbon emissions many of Brunel’s managers had reduced 
exposure to oil and gas and this should be recognised as a result of the outcome of 
the responsible investment approach taken.  The market position was compounded 
by Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, hence the underperformance.  

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the funding and investment position and 
governance activities as at 31 March 2022 and supported the revised timeline 
on the governance work plan activities.

66. RISK REGISTER 

The Head of Pensions explained that in accordance with the Risk Management 
policy agreed by Committee on 3 December 2021, progress and activity in 
managing risks would be monitored and recorded on a risk register and key 
information would be provided on a quarterly basis to the Pension Committee and 
the Pension Board, as part of the regular update reports on governance, 
investments and funding, and administration and communications.  The Committee 
were advised that there were no major changes and the next version of the risk 
register would be brought to the September Committee meeting.  

In response to a question, it was confirmed that statutory risks were graded as 
amber.  Members also sought assurance that pension fund cyber security was 
tested regularly, this was confirmed by the Head of Pensions.  

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the risk register and the current elevated risks and 
the new risks as outlined in the report.  

67. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Resolved 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public.

68. EXEMPT MINUTES 

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 3rd March 2022 were agreed as a 
correct record.  

69. QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT AND STRATEGY ASSET ALLOCATION 
PORTFOLIO MODELLING 

The Independent Advisor presented the report in detail and advised members of the 
Fund Asset Allocation and investment performance for the quarter ending 31 March 
2022.   

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the report.  

70. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND QUARTERLEY UPDATE - PART 2 

The Head of Pensions presented the report in conjunction with the Independent 
Adviser and explained that the report was designed to be read in conjunction with 
the Part 1 report, which provided more detailed analysis and commentary on the 
Fund’s asset allocation, investment performance for the quarter ending 31 March 
2022.  

Resolved 

That the Committee noted the detailed performance reports for the quarter 
ending 31 March 2022 and the employer, Brunel and future investment 
activities of the Fund.

The Committee also approved the change to the actuarial assumption, as 
stated within the report.  

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 12.32 pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

Pension Board 
21 July 2022 

 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund update – Part 1 
Quarter ending 31 March 2022 

 
Report of the Head of Pensions 

 

Summary 
 

This report summarises the Fund’s funding position, market value, asset allocation, 
investment performance for the quarter ending 31 March 2022.  

 

The information contained in this report was taken to the Pensions Committee on 16 June 
2022 and fulfils the requirement for administering authorities, under the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 
must keep under review the performance of their investment managers.  

 

 
Funding position 
 
The Fund is now more likely to have sufficient assets to meet earned benefit payments than at the 
previous valuation.  
 
 

 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

Past service funding position: The Fund has a surplus of £415m as at 31 March 2022 
compared to a surplus of £41m at 31 March 2019, however this is down from £490m as at 
31 December. The improvement since 2019 has been largely driven by strong investment 
performance. 
 
Investment outlook: Prudent expectations of future investment returns have remained 
broadly the same at 4.2% p.a., but the likelihood of this return being achieved is higher (75% 
likelihood at 31 March 2022, compared to a 70% likelihood at 31 March 2019). 
 
Fully funded required return:  
The likelihood of achieving the future investment returns needed to have sufficient assets 
to pay past service benefits has increased since the last valuation (there is now a 83% chance 
of achieving the returns needed).  
Therefore, the Fund is now more likely to have sufficient assets to meet earned benefit 
payments than at the previous valuation. 
 
The detailed funding report, prepared by Hymans, is attached at Appendix 1.  

 

Fund Investment Performance 
 

Over the quarter to 31 March 2022, the Fund’s total market value decreased by £120.655m, 
to £3,106.093m.  
 
Over the quarter, total Fund assets produced a negative return of -3.8%, compared to a 
target of -1.5%, underperforming the strategic benchmark by 2.3%. 
 
Performance over the 3 years to 31 March 2022 was 8.3% annualised slightly behind the 
benchmark by 0.2%. 
 
A detailed investment performance report is attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 
 
Investment Strategy and Activities 
 
During the Quarter the following investment activity took place: 

• Divestment of £50m from the Passive Global Developed Equity (Hedged) portfolio to fund 
capital calls into the alternative asset classes.  

• Full divestment from the Passive Low Carbon and Smart Beta portfolios with £70m being 
invested into the Global Sustainable portfolio and the remainder invested into the Passive 
Paris Aligned portfolio as per the new strategic asset allocation 

• The following commitments to maintain the Strategic Asset Allocation were made to Cycle 
3 of the Brunel Private Markets portfolios:  

o Infrastructure - £20m  
o Private Equity - £16m 
o Private Debt - £38m  

• During the quarter there has been a number of calls into the alternative asset classes of 
circa £10m in GBP terms and circa £7m in GBP terms into international property, resulting 
in the Fund moving more towards its target allocation to alternatives and property. 

 

Page 12



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

The current Strategic Asset Allocation is as follows: 
 

Asset Class 
 

Target 
Allocation 

% 

Range 
+/- % 

Allocation as 
at 31 March 

2022 
% 

Variation from 
Target 

% 

Equities 55.0 3.0 57.9 2.9 

Fixed Interest 22.0 2.0 18.2 -3.8 

Alternatives* 23.0 2.0 23.8 0.8 

 
A detailed Strategic Asset Allocation report is attached as Appendix 3 to this report. 
 

 

Responsible Investment update 
 
The 2022 Brunel Responsible Investment and Stewardship outcomes report and the Hermes 
EOS Annual Review 2021 have been shared with Committee and Pension Board members 
since the last Committee meeting in March 2022. 
 
Both these reports provide in-depth analysis and case studies of the voting, engagement and 
RI outcomes undertaken on the Funds behalf throughout 2021. 
 
Due to the size of these reports, they are not provided as part of your Committee papers. The 
reports were circulated via email on 6 May and can also be located on the Funds website via 
the following links: 
 
2022 Brunel Responsible Investment and Stewardship outcomes report 

 
Hermes EOS Annual Review 2021 
 
 

Fund Administration 
 
The Administration Team are still currently continuing to operate working practises that were 
introduced at the start of the pandemic in 2020. This sees half of the team working in the 
office and the other half working from home on a week on, week off basis. This approach was 
undertaken to mitigate the impact on the service delivery and ensure staff safety during the 
pandemic. Full performance statistics are provided at appendix 4 to this report. 
 
As we emerge from the pandemic, we are now working towards implementing agile working 
for the team, as per GCC guidelines, which will see greater flexibility across the team, but will 
result in a major change to the overall teams working behaviours that were in place prior to 
the pandemic in 2020. 
 
The working processes and procedures that were in place prior to the pandemic, were in place 
to ensure that the team met one of the main objectives of the Fund, to pay the right benefits, 
to the right person at the right time. Over the last decade the administration of the Fund has 

Page 13

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2115662/brunel-responsible-investment-outcomes-report-2021.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2115665/gloucestershire-pension-fund-hermes-eos-annual-review-2021.pdf


 

Agenda Item 5 

 

become vastly more complex, with increasing regulations, volumes of enquiries, governance, 
and information requirements, such has recently been seen with the increase in checks that 
the Fund now has to undertake before we can make a transfer payment to another pension 
arrangement. 
 
The current performance indicators remain under challenge due to the volume of casework, 
which has returned to 2019/20 levels in most areas and new working practises (i.e. agile 
working) that remain in place. Also, the level of complexity continues to develop, as has been 
seen in new regulations and checks that now must be performed before the Fund can make 
a transfer payment. 
 
Staffing update 
 
I am pleased to advise that we have appointed Zoe Bowen-Viner and Chris Payne to the roles 
of Group Pension Leaders with effect from 1 June. 
 
The recruitment for Lead Pensions Officers (internal only) closed on 31 May and we received 
6 applications for the 3 posts (1 new post and 2 resulting from Zoe and Chris appointments). 
Interviews for these 3 posts are currently being scheduled. Once the outcomes of this 
recruitment process have been completed, we will then commence the recruitment of the 
additional Pension Officer posts. 
 
The recruitment of the Pension Investment & Accounting Manager post is currently active 
with a closing date of 20 June 2022. 
 
The Funds Pension Administration Manager, Alan Marshall applied for and has been granted 
flexible retirement, which will come into effect from 1 November 2022. With the impending 
projects such as McCloud and Pensions Dashboard retaining Alans vast knowledge within the 
Fund is key as well as developing succession planning and reducing the key person risk that 
currently exists. The recruitment process for a new Pension Administration Manager will 
commence shortly. 
 
Recruitment remains a challenging area across the entire LGPS and there are a vast number 
of Funds actively recruiting at this time in both administration and investment arenas and as 
the volume of membership continues to increase, as do the complexities of peoples 
circumstances, therefore, to ensure that we are able to deliver the ongoing level of service 
required we will need to undertake a review of all our processes to see how we can improve 
them either with efficiencies or with the implementation of IT systems. Alongside this, we will 
also be undertaking a review of the administration strategy and the performance indicators, 
that were previous reviewed in 2017 to see if they remain appropriate, this activity is built 
part of 2022/23 business plan alongside other key projects such as the Pensions Dashboard 
and McCloud. 
 
In the meantime, we as a team remain focussed on paying the right benefits, to the right 
people at the right time, adapting where possible and ensuring we strive to deliver an equal 
service to all members. 
 

Page 14



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

 
 
At their meeting in January 2022 the Local Pensions Board requested that we reflected the 
statutory timeframes in our performance indicators to aid oversight. We are currently looking 
at how best to incorporate these and this will form part of the performance indicator review, 
but I can advise that we are meeting our statutory timeframes and we do not have any 
reportable breaches at this time. 
 
 

Business Plan 2022/23 
 

The following is a summary, together with commentary of the amber key tasks from the 

work plan agreed as part of the business plan for 2022/23.  

A detailed report against all items is attached as Appendix 5 to this report 

Governance 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Annual review against The 

Pensions Regulators Code of 

Practise 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

    

 

 

 

Investment Management 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Review the recommendations 

of the Taskforce for Climate-

related Financial Disclosure 

(TCFD) and requirements for 

UK Stewardship code signatory 

status 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

x – awaiting 

consultation 

from DHLUC 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

 

 

 

Core projects tracking from 2022/23 business plan 

Below is a brief tracking of the core projects identified in the 2022/23 business case. Further updates 

are provided in Appendix 5 to this report 

1) 2022 Actuarial valuation 

and associated tasks 

On track and operating to schedule  

2) Review pensions 

administration system 

contract  

On schedule – project planning in phase  

3) Pensions Dashboard 

(including a Data 

Improvement Strategy) 

Scheduled Q2/Q3 2022/23  

4) McCloud  Awaiting guidance  

 

Governance Review 
 

The following is a summary, together with commentary of the amber key tasks from the 

work plan agreed by Committee in September 2021.  

Committee were asked and confirmed their support to the revised timeline on certain 

activities below. A detailed report against all items is attached as Appendix 6 to this report. 

Action  Reason  
 

Timescales  

 

Current 

action/comment 

Update the Fund's Governance  
Compliance Statement and  
Policy  

The current Compliance 

Statement is dated July 2017. 

We would anticipate this 

document being reviewed in 

conjunction with the 

Governance Policy statement 

which was last reviewed in 

February 2020.  

We understand that an updated 

Compliance Statement has been 

drafted so we assume that our 

input would be to review the 

draft updated policy  

Q3 - Q4 

2021/22   

✓ - will be brought 

to the September 

2022 meeting 

Page 16



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

Review of Scheme of Delegation  Review Council’s Scheme of 

Delegation to ensure that 

pension fund matters are 

covered.  

Consider this in conjunction 

with recommendation from SAB 

Good Governance review 

regarding LGPS senior officer.  

Q3 - Q4 

2021/22  

✓ - will be brought 

to the September 

2022 meeting 

Review the Fund's  

Communications Policy  

We understand that a review 

was due to be undertaken in  

2019/20 but this did not take 

place  

Q4 

2021/22 – 

Q1 

2022/23  

Revised timeline - Will 

commence in Q4 

2022/Q1 2023 

Review the Fund's  

Administration Strategy  

Last reviewed in 2017  Q4 

2021/22 – 

Q1 

2022/23  

Revised timeline - Will 

commence in Q4 

2022/Q1 2023 

Develop a Fund Business  

Continuity Policy / Plan  

Expected to be included in TPR 

New Code.   

We understand that the Fund 

currently relies on the Council's 

approach to Business 

Continuity.  

Q2 

2022/23  

Revised timescale 

Develop a Fund Cyber Strategy  Expected to be included in TPR 

New Code.   

We understand that the Fund 

currently relies on the Council's 

approach to Cyber Security.  

Q3 – Q4 

2022/23  

Revised timescale 

Carrying out a review of Fund's 

practices against TPR's New  

Code of Practice    

As part of best practice, we 

would expect the Administering 

Authority to carry out a regular 

review of their practices against 

the New Code.  

Awaiting 

code of 

practice 

from TPR  

On hold 

 

 

Employer Representatives – Local Pension Board and Pensions Committee 

An employer representative position on the Gloucestershire Local Pension Board recently 

became vacant, therefore, a communication was issued to all fund employers on 20 April 

2022 requesting expressions of interest in the role. I am pleased to advise that after 

consultation with Cllr Lynden Stowe in his capacity as Chair of the Pensions Committee, in 

Page 17



 

Agenda Item 5 

 

accordance with the approval process, Mr Colin Williams from the Lower Severn Internal 

Drainage Board, has been appointed to the role for a 4-year term. 

I can also advise that as recommended by the Pensions Committee and approved by Council 

as a result of the governance review, at the culmination of the above process a further 

communication was issued to the Fund employers on 26 May 2022 requesting expressions 

of interest in the role of Employer Representative on the Gloucestershire Pensions 

Committee. Expression of interest have been requested to be received by Wednesday 15 

June, a verbal update on the progress of this process will be given at the formal meeting. 

 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund audit plan year ending 31 March 2022 

Attached as Appendix 7 is the Audit Plan produced by Grant Thornton (the Fund’s external 

auditor) for the financial year ending 31 March 2022. The Audit Plan provides an overview 

of the planned scope of the statutory audit of the Fund and the identified significant risks, 

materiality, and the audit logistics. 

It is planned that the Pension Fund accounts and the audit findings report in relation to the 

Fund will also be brought to the September 2022 Pensions Committee meeting ahead of the 

formal approval by the Audit and Governance Committee. 

 

Recommendation 
 
The Board is recommended to note the position of the Fund as at 31 March 2021 and the 
governance undertaken and subsequent recommendations agreed by the Pensions 
Committee at their meeting held on 16 June 2022. 
 

Contact Officer 
 
Matthew Trebilcock – Head of Pensions (01452 328920) 

Page 18



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP  

Funding update as at 31 March 2022 

This paper has been commissioned by and is addressed to 

Gloucestershire County Council as Administering Authority of the 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund (“the Fund”).  

Its purpose is to provide an update on the funding position and risk 

metrics as at 31 March 2022 and how these compare to the position at the 

last formal valuation of the Fund (31 March 2019).  The results consider 

the Fund as a whole and not the positions of individual employers (which 

may vary materially). Further details on the methodology, data, reliances 

and limitations of the results is contained in the Appendix and the Fund’s 

2019 valuation report.   

The results in this paper should not be taken as the funding results 

that will be published for the 2022 formal valuation. 

Key points to note on the commentary of this funding update are: 

• The funding position is only a snapshot in time, based on a single 

set of assumptions about the future, and is therefore extremely 

sensitive to the choice of assumptions and market movements, 

particularly the expected future investment return assumption. 

• Actual benefit payments in the future will be in respect of both 

service accrued up to today (“past service”) and service that will be 

accrued in the future (“future service”).  The funding position 

presented is only in respect of past service benefits. 

• The assumptions have been derived in line with the Fund’s current 

Funding Strategy Statement (with the exception of the assumed 

future investment return, which has been set in line with the Fund’s 

desired level of prudence for the upcoming 2022 formal valuation 

i.e. a 75% likelihood of the future investment return being achieved, 

compared to 70% at 31 March 2019). The approach to setting all 

assumptions will be reviewed as part of the 2022 formal valuation.  

• The judgements relating to McCloud and Goodwin will impact 

employers differently (the analysis does not allow for these). 

Executive summary 

 

* likelihood of the Fund’s portfolio achieving these returns over the next 20 years 

Past service funding position: The past service funding position has 

improved. The Fund has a surplus of £415m at 31 March 2022 (compared 

to a surplus of £41 at 31 March 2019). The improvement has been largely 

driven by strong investment performance since 31 March 2019. 

Investment outlook: Prudent expectations of future investment returns 

have remained broadly the same at 4.2% p.a., but the likelihood of this 

return being achieved is higher (75% likelihood at 31 March 2022, 

compared to a 70% likelihood at 31 March 2019).  

Fully funded required rate:  The likelihood of achieving the future 

investment returns needed to have sufficient assets to pay past service 

benefits has increased since the last valuation (there is now a 83% 

chance of achieving the returns needed). 

Therefore, the Fund is now more likely to have sufficient assets to 

meet earned benefit payments than at the previous valuation.   

Reported funding position 31 March 2019 31 March 2022

Assets (£m) 2,379 3,111

Past service liabilities (£m) 2,338 2,696

Surplus/(Deficit) (£m) 41 415

Funding level 102% 115%

Assumed future investment return 4.2% 4.2%

Likelihood of achieving this return* 70% 75%

Fully funded target 31 March 2019 31 March 2022

Funding target 100% 100%

Future investment return required to be 100% funded 4.1% 3.4%

Likelihood of achieving this return* 71% 83%

P
age 19



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

May 2022 002 
 

Liabilities 

Benefit projections allowing for changes in inflation: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The blue bars are the projected annual future benefits payments at 31 

March 2022 and the pink line on shows the total benefit payment 

projections at 31 March 2019.   

Actual pension increases at April 2020 and April 2021 were less than 

expected (1.7% vs. 2.3% and 0.5% vs 2.3% respectively). This reduces 

the future benefit payments from the Fund. However the actual pension 

increase at April 2022 was more than expected (3.1% vs 2.3%) which 

increases the future benefit payments from the Fund. 

Further, market derived long-term future inflation expectations have risen 

from 2.3% p.a. at 31 March 2019 to 2.7% p.a. at 31 March 2022 (noting 

that no allowance has been made for any changes resulting from RPI 

reform).   

The impact of higher long-term future inflation expectations and higher 

than expected pension increase at April 2022 has resulted in an increase 

in the projected benefit payments as at 31 March 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 20



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

May 2022 003 
 

 

Funding level versus future investment return assumption  

At 31 March 2022 the estimated funding position has improved with the 

surplus increasing from £41m at 31 March 2019 to £415m at 31 March 

2022.   

 

The funding level has been calculated using a future investment return 

assumption which has a 75% likelihood of being achieved (in line with the 

Fund’s desired level of prudence for the upcoming 2022 formal valuation).  

The reported funding level is extremely sensitive to this likelihood.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The chart below shows how the funding level varies under different future 

investment return assumptions.  The likelihood of achieving these returns 

is noted next to each point of the chart.   

• From this chart, we can see that the likelihood of achieving any 

given future investment return is higher than it was at 2019.   

• However, regardless of the investment return assumption used, 

there has been an improvement in the funding position at 31 March 

2021 compared to the 2019 valuation, reflecting an increase in 

assets held today per pound of benefit to be paid out in future.  

• This improvement has been driven by strong investment 

performance over the period (27.1% since 31 March 2019). 

  

Funding position 31 March 2019 31 March 2022

Assets (£m) 2,379 3,111

Past service liabilities (£m) 2,338 2,696

Surplus/(Deficit) (£m) 41 415

Funding level 102% 115%

P
age 21



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

May 2022 004 
 

Indicative impact on future contributions 

Secondary rate contributions 

It can be inferred that the improved past service funding position at 31 

March 2022 is likely to have a positive impact on Secondary rates at the 

next valuation for the average employer, all else being equal.   

Of course any changes in funding position (and any impact on 

contributions rates) will be varied across the Fund’s employers and is 

dependent on each individual employer’s membership and funding plans. 

Primary rate contributions 

As discussed above, the past service funding position has improved. 

However, the assets held today only cover past service benefits – we still 

need to fund those benefits yet to be earned (i.e. Primary Rate 

contributions in respect of future accrual). For the average fund, two-thirds 

of the benefit payments made over the next 50 years will be in respect of 

benefits yet to be earned.   

Compared to the 2019 valuation, we expect a more challenging economic 

outlook in general which would apply upward pressure to Primary Rates. 

The key drivers of the expected increases in Primary Rates are   

• Lower yield environment in the future;  

• Higher future inflation expectations; and  

• Increased market volatility leading to wider spreads on yields and 
inflation.  

While improvement in funding positions is good news for the Fund (and 

the Employers), this only serves to limit the impact of the above. 

Summary 

Combining both these factors together, if the Fund’s funding strategy and 

investment strategy remained static, we may expect funding plans to be 

broadly unchanged at the next formal valuation (31 March 2022). 

However this may vary between employers. 

Reliances and limitations 

This paper has been prepared for Gloucestershire County Council as 

Administering Authority of the Gloucestershire Pension Fund for the 

purpose described above.  It has not been prepared for use for any other 

purpose and should not be so used.  The paper should not be disclosed to 

any third party except as required by law or regulatory obligation or with 

our prior written consent.  We accept no liability where the paper is used 

by or disclosed to a third party unless we have expressly accepted such 

liability in writing.  Where this is permitted, the paper may only be released 

or otherwise disclosed in a complete form which fully discloses our advice 

and the basis on which it is given.   

This funding update is based on a rollforward of the 2019 valuation 

and assumptions in line with the current Funding Strategy Statement 

(FSS).  For the 2022 valuation we will refresh the underlying 

membership data and assumptions which may result in the 

disclosed funding position at 31 March 2022 being different from the 

results in this update. 

The following Technical Actuarial Standards are applicable in relation to 

this advice, and have been complied with where material and to a 

proportionate degree: 

• TAS100 

This report together with the formal valuation report for the Fund (issued 

March 2020) and the Fund’s Funding Strategy Statement set out the 

aggregate of my advice.  

 

Julie West FFA     

For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP 

25 May 2022 

P
age 22



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

May 2022 005 
 

 

Appendix 

Assumptions and methodology 

Liabilities 

All demographic and financial assumptions underlying the benefit 

projections have been derived as per the Funding Strategy Statement in 

force as at the 31 March 2019 formal valuation of the Fund, with the 

exception of the assumed future investment return and the future inflation 

assumption (which affects the rate of future pension increases, CARE 

revaluation and salary increases). 

No allowance has been made for any other changes in the formulation of 

underlying actuarial assumptions. For example, future assumed long-term 

inflation expectations may be affected by the recent RPI reform 

announcement (RPI is expected to align with CPIH from 2030 onwards) or 

longevity assumptions may need to be revisited in light of any emerging 

data on the long-term health impact of Covid-19. As part of the 2022 

valuation all assumptions will be revisited, and any changes deemed 

necessary may have an impact on the funding position.  

Further details about the assumptions can be found in the 2019 formal 

valuation report dated March 2020. 

The future long-term inflation assumption used in the benefit projections 

as at 31 March 2022 is 2.7% p.a.. Therefore, as at 31 March 2022 we 

have assumed that: 

• Future pension increases are 2.7% p.a. 

• Future CARE pot revaluation is 2.7% p.a. 

• Future salary increases are 3.0% p.a. 

 

 

The benefit projections assume that membership experience since 31 

March 2019 has been in line with the assumptions made.  At a whole fund 

level, this assumption is reasonable to make and, for the purpose of this 

paper, we do not expect this to result in a material inaccuracy. 

We have also allowed for additional benefit accrual between 1 April 2019 

to 31 March 2022. This allows comparison with the Fund’s asset value as 

at 31 March 2022. 

Future investment returns 

To calculate the expected future investment returns , we have used our 

proprietary Economic Service Scenario (“ESS”) model.  Further details 

about the ESS model, and the calibration of the model as at 31 March 

2019, can be found in the 2019 valuation formal report dated March 

2020Error! Reference source not found..   

The calibration of the model as at 31 March 2022 is detailed below.  The 

following figures have been calculated using 5,000 simulations of the 

ESS, calibrated using market data as at 31 March 2022.  All returns are 

shown net of fees.  Percentiles refer to percentiles of the 5,000 

simulations and are the annualised total returns over 5, 10 and 20 years, 

except for the yields which refer to the simulated yields for at that time 

horizon.  Only the overall Fund portfolio returns are shown, however 

similar information for separate asset classes is available on request. 

The portfolio returns are based on the Fund’s current strategic portfolio of 

assets (further details on this portfolio are detailed in the Fund’s 

Investment Strategy Statement, dated December 2021). 

 

  

P
age 23



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

May 2022 006 
 

 

The current calibration of the model indicates that a period of outward 

yield movement is expected.  For example, over the next 20 years our 

model expects the 17 year maturity annualised real (nominal) interest rate 

to rise from -2.2% (1.9%) to 1.0% (3.2%). 

 

Model limitations 

The models used to calculate the results in the paper make some 

necessary simplifying assumptions. I do not consider these simplifications 

to be material and I am satisfied that they are appropriate for the purposes 

described in this report. 

Sensitivity of results 

The results in this report are dependent on a number of factors including 

the membership details, current financial conditions, the outlook for future 

financial conditions and demographic trends such as longevity.  Changes 

in each of these factors can have a material impact on the results.  I have 

not sought to quantify the impact of differences in the above because of 

the complex interactions between them.  If further information about the 

sensitivity of the results to different data or assumptions is required, this 

can be provided on request. 

Funding Risks 

Please see the FSS for details of the funding risks that apply to the future 

ability of the Fund to pay all members’ benefits.  These include, but are 

not limited to: 

• Market risks – these include investment returns being less than 

anticipated or liabilities increasing more than expected due to 

changes in market conditions underlying the financial assumptions 

(e.g. inflation or pay increases above that assumed etc.). 

• Demographic risks – these include anything that affects the timing 

or type of benefits (e.g. members living longer than anticipated, 

fewer members opting into the 50/50 option, etc.). 

• Regulatory risks – the LGPS is a statutory scheme.  There is a risk 

that central Government legislation could significantly change the 

cost of the scheme in future. 

In particular, the benefit structure of the LGPS is currently 

under review as a result of the consultation on the McCloud 

and Sargeant judgement, HM Treasury’s and Scheme Advisory 

Board’s cost-sharing valuations as well as the recent outcome 

of the Goodwin tribunal.  Benefit changes as a result of these 

issues may materially affect the value of benefits earned by 

members both in the past and future.  I have made no direct 

allowance for these changes and may need to review my 

calculations once the outcomes are known.   

• Administration and Governance risks – failures in administration 

processes can lead to incorrect actuarial calculations.  For 

example, where membership data is not up to date (e.g. leaver 

forms not being submitted in a timely matter) material inaccuracies 

in respect of the level of deficit and contributions may occur at 

future valuations.  

16th %'ile 2.3% -2.2%

50th %'ile 3.9% -1.3%

84th %'ile 5.5% -0.4%

16th %'ile 1.6% -1.7%

50th %'ile 3.3% -0.5%

84th %'ile 4.9% 0.7%

16th %'ile 3.3% 1.2% -0.7%

50th %'ile 6.2% 2.7% 1.1%

84th %'ile 9.2% 4.3% 2.7%

Dispersion (1 year) 12% 1.4%

5

y
e
a
rs

1
0

y
e
a
rs

2
0

y
e
a
rs

17 year real 

yield

Portfolio 

returns

Inflation 

(CPI)

P
age 24



Gloucestershire Pension Fund | Hymans Robertson LLP 

 

May 2022 007 
 

• Resource and Environmental risks – i.e. risks relating to potential 

resource constraints and environmental changes, and their impact 

on Fund employers and investments: such risks exist and may 

prove to be material. Given the lack of relevant quantitative 

information available specifically relevant to the Fund, I have not 

explicitly incorporated such risks in this advice. The Administering 

Authority may wish to seek direct advice on these risks. 

 

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1

Performance vs Benchmark @ 31 March 2022
Market Value 

31.12.21
Market Value 

31.03.22

Asset Class Manager Inception Date £000's £000's
Actual 

Performance %
Benchmark %

Actual 
Performance %

Benchmark %
Actual 

Performance %
Benchmark %

Actual 
Performance %

Benchmark %

Gloucestershire Pension Fund Mandates

Equities

UK Active Equity Brunel Nov-18 420,451           405,122               -3.6 1.2 8.5 13.8 3.5 4.8 4.9 6.1

Emerging Market Equities Brunel Oct-19 192,834           179,114               -7.1 -4.3 -11.5 -6.8 0.0 0.0 2.7 5.0

Global High Alpha Equities Brunel Nov-19 444,209           408,878               -8.0 -2.3 8.8 15.9 0.0 0.0 17.3 14.5

Sustainable Equities Brunel Sep-20 325,495           362,852               -9.8 -2.5 8.2 12.9 0.0 0.0 11.9 17.3

Low Carbon Equities Brunel - LGIM Jul-18 79,841              -                        0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Passive Developed Equities (Hdg) Brunel - LGIM Jul-18 194,738           136,169               -4.4 -4.4 11.0 11.1 14.2 14.3 11.2 11.3

Passive Developed Eq Paris Aligned Brunel - LGIM Jan-22 -                    307,747               0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.1 3.2

Smart Beta Brunel - LGIM Jul-18 304,006           -                        0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Asset Class 1,961,574        1,799,882            

Fixed Interest

Multi-Asset Credit Brunel Jun-21 206,096           200,543               -2.7 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.5 3.6

Sterling Corporate Bonds Brunel Jul-21 388,569           365,269               -6.0 -6.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -6.3 -6.9 

Total Asset Class 594,665           565,812               

Alternatives

Diversifying Returns Fund Brunel Jul-20 232,804           233,716               0.4 0.8 7.3 3.2 0.0 0.0 4.3 3.1

UK Property Brunel Apr-20 245,170           258,077               4.7 5.6 19.8 23.1 0.0 0.0 10.4 12.3

International Property Brunel Apr-20 22,460              25,483                 8.0 5.4 15.6 17.9 0.0 0.0 5.3 8.0

Infrastructure - Cycle 1 Brunel Apr-18 20,692              26,046                 1.0 1.7 5.9 7.0 6.8 3.1 3.1 2.8

Infrastructure - Cycle 2 Brunel Apr-20 11,795              34,058                 -7.5 1.7 -6.6 7.0 0.0 0.0 -5.5 4.9

Private Equity - Cycle 1 Brunel Apr-18 20,742              23,558                 4.7 -2.5 46.2 12.9 20.1 13.9 23.6 14.7

Private Equity - Cycle 2 Brunel Apr-20 10,448              13,731                 7.5 -2.5 24.1 12.9 0.0 0.0 67.1 13.5

Private Debt - Cycle 2 Brunel Sep-21 20,776              20,921                 0.7 1.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 4.3 3.1

Private Debt Golub Capital Partners Jul-17 32,301              33,228                 5.8 1.3 19.0 5.2 8.8 5.5 8.8 5.6

Private Debt Arcmont Asset Management Aug-17 23,650              22,878                 1.5 1.3 8.9 5.2 7.6 5.5 7.5 5.6

Venture Capital Yorkshire Fund Managers/TVP Oct-17 3,997                3,998                   0.0 0.0 14.7 0.0 4.8 0.0 0.0 0.0

In-house Cash In-house Cash 6,775                5,431                   0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Fund Manager Cash Fund Manager Cash 18,899              39,274                 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Asset Class 670,509           740,399               

Gloucestershire Pension Fund Total 3,226,748      3,106,093         -3.8 -1.5 6.9 8.8 8.3 8.5 7.7 8.2

3 Years 
Annualised Return

1 Year 
Total Return

3 Months 
Total Return

Since Inception
 Annualised Return

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 .

Fund Asset Allocation vs Strategic Asset Allocation @ 31st March 2022

Market Value
31 Mar 2022

Target Allocation* Range
Fund Asset 
Allocation
31 Mar 22

Variation from 
Target

Variation from 
previous quarter

Asset Class Manager(s) £000's % +/- % % %

Equities

UK Active Equity Brunel 405,122                    12.0 2.0 13.0 1.0 

Emerging Market Equities Brunel 179,114                    6.5 1.5 5.8 -0.7 

Global High Alpha Equities Brunel 408,878                    13.5 2.0 13.2 -0.3 

Sustainable Equities Brunel 362,852                    13.0 2.0 11.7 -1.3 

Low Carbon Equities Brunel - LGIM -                             0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Passive Developed Equities (Hdg) Brunel - LGIM 136,169                    0.0 0.0 4.4 4.4 

Passive Developed Eq Paris Aligned Brunel - LGIM 307,747                    10.0 2.0 9.9 -0.1 

Smart Beta Brunel - LGIM -                             0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

Total Asset Class 1,799,882                55.0 3.0 57.9 2.9 

Fixed Interest

Multi-Asset Credit Brunel 200,543                    7.5 1.0 6.5 -1.0 

Sterling Corporate Bonds Brunel 365,269                    14.5 1.5 11.8 -2.7 

Total Asset Class 565,812                    22.0 2.0 18.2 -3.8 

Alternatives

Diversifying Returns Fund Brunel 233,716                    0.0 10.0 7.5 7.5 

UK Property Brunel 258,077                    7.5 1.0 8.3 0.8 

International Property Brunel 25,483                      2.5 1.0 0.8 -1.7 

Infrastructure Brunel 60,104                      5.0 1.0 1.9 -3.1 

Private Equity Brunel 37,289                      3.0 1.0 1.2 -1.8 

Private Debt Golub/Arcmont/Brunel 77,027                      5.0 1.0 2.5 -2.5 

Venture Capital Yorkshire Fund Managers/TVP 3,998                        0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 

Cash In-house Cash/Fund Manager Cash 44,705                      0.0 0.5 1.4 1.4 

Total Asset Class 740,399                    23.0 2.0 23.8 0.8 

Gloucestershire Pension Fund Total 3,106,093                100.0 0.0 100.0

 Moving further away from target
 Moving closer to target
 Stable against target

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Pension Administration Summary Performance  

 

Table 1 – Summary Performance 

 

Service Target 2018/19 
Actual 

2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Actual 

2021/22 to 
31/03/2022 

(previous quarter) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 96% 98% 90% 75% (72%) 

Retirements and 
lump sums (15 
days) 

90% 69% 61% 80% 64% (58%) 

Refunds Paid (15 
days) 

90% 98% 99% 93% 63% (62%) 

Death Grants Paid 
(8 days) 

90% 82% 67% 70% 51% (52%) 

Annual Benefits 
Statements issued 
within the 
statutory deadline 

100% 100% see 
note 1 

100% see 
note 1 

100% see 
note 1 

100% see note 1 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 98% 99% 97% 96% (98%) 

 

 

Table 2 – 2021/22 Performance to 31 March 2022 

Service Standards 
– Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 
(previous 
quarters) 

No. 
processed 
on time 
(previous 
quarters) 

Actual 
achievement 
(previous quarters) 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 
 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 699 (535) 523 (384) 75% (72%) 12 (13) not available 

Retirements and 
lump sums (15 
days) 

90% 968 (751) 624 (434) 64% (58%) 12 (13) 19 (19) 

Refunds Paid (15 
days) 

90% 504 (365) 320 (228) 63% (62%) 14 (14) 20 (20) 

Death Grants Paid 
(8 days) 

90% 74 (46) 38 (24) 51% (52%) 10 (9) 14 (13) 

2020/21 Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within the 
statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,265 34,265 100% N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 198 (139) 191 (136) 96% (98%) 6 (5) 35 (32) 

Page 31



2 

2020/21 Performance (full year) 

Service 
Standards – 
Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 

No. 
processed 
on time 

Actual 
achievement 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 534 482 90% 9 not available 

Retirements 
and lump sums 
(15 days) 

90% 872 701 80% 12 19 

Refunds Paid 
(15 days) 

90% 424 395 93% 10 20 

Death Grants 
Paid (8 days) 

90% 89 62 70% 10 17 

2019/20 
Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within 
the statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,434 see 
note 1 

34,434 see 
note 1 

100% see note 
1 

N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 136 132 97% 6 22 

 

2019/20 Performance (full year) 

Service 
Standards – 
Processing 
tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement  

No. 
Processed 

No. 
processed 
on time 

Actual 
achievement 

Average 
days 
taken 
(averaging 
all cases) 

Average days 
taken 
(averaging 
cases 
exceeding 
target ONLY) 

Estimates to 
employees (15 
days) 

90% 739 724 98% 8 not available 

Retirements 
and lump sums 
(15 days) 

90% 983 603 61% 13 19 

Refunds Paid 
(15 days) 

90% 649 641 99% 7 23 

Death Grants 
Paid (8 days) 

90% 76 51 67% 7 10 

2018/19 
Annual 
Benefits 
Statements 
issued within 
the statutory 
deadline 

100% 34,167 see 
note 1 

34,167 see 
note 1 

100% N/A N/A 

“Transfers Out” 
Paid (15 days) 

90% 194 192 99% 4 16 

Page 32



3 

 

2018/19 Performance (full year) 

 

Service Standards – 
Processing tasks within 
internal targets 

Target 
Achievement 

No. Processed No. 
processed on 
time 

Actual 
achievement 

Average 
days 
taken 

Estimates to employees (15 
days) 

90% 615 587 96% 7 

Retirements and lump sums 
(15 days) 

90% 858 592 69% 13 

Refunds Paid (15 days) 90% 620 609 98% 7 

Death Grants Paid (8 days) 90% 79 65 82% 7 

2017/18 Annual Benefits 
Statements issued within the 
statutory deadline 

100% 32,817 see 
note 1 

32,817 see 
note 1 

100% see note 
1 

N/A 

“Transfers Out” Paid (15 
days) 

90% 147 144 98 5 

 

 

 

Note 1 - Regarding Annual Benefits Statements, all of the year end returns from all employers were 

received by the Administration Team within the statutory deadline. All returns were matched to the 

member records held within the Administration team, and where a definitive match was made, 100% 

of the Annual Benefit Statements were distributed to active and deferred members by the statutory 

deadline. 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Plan 2022/23 
 

The following is an update on the Key Tasks/Work Plan which formed part of the agreed 

business plan for 2022/23.  

Comments on each topic are contained within the table. For the amber items, this 

represents that these activities are yet to commence, but these activities are scheduled to 

take place over multiple quarters: 

 

Governance 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Review of Risk Register ✓ - 

completed 

✓ - on 

agenda 

   

Approval of External Audit Plan  ✓ - on 

agenda 

   

Implement outcomes of the 

Funds Governance Review 

✓ - 

operating to 

workplan 

✓ - 

operating to 

workplan 

   

Review and approve Business 

Plan 

✓- 

completed 

    

Annual review against The 

Pensions Regulators Code of 

Practise 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

    

Approval of audited Fund 

accounts 

     

Approval of Annual Report      

Review Policy Statements ✓ - 

completed 

    

Training Needs Analysis      

Review Breaches log ✓ - 

confirmation 

provided 

✓ - 

confirmation 

on agenda 

   

Monitor employer activity ✓ - 

completed 

✓ - on 

agenda 

   

 

 

 

Page 35



 

 

Funding 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Review of ongoing funding 

position 

✓ - 

completed 

✓ - on 

agenda 

   

Cash flow modelling      

Review the Funding Strategy 

Statement 

     

 

 

Investment Management 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Monitor Fund Performance ✓ - 

completed 

✓ - on 

agenda 

   

Responsible Investment 

Reporting 

 ✓ - on 

agenda 

   

Review the Funds Investment 

Strategy Statement 

 ✓ - on 

agenda 

   

Review the Funds Responsible 

Investment Policy 

     

Review the recommendations 

of the Taskforce for Climate-

related Financial Disclosure 

(TCFD) and requirements for 

UK Stewardship code signatory 

status 

✓ - on the 

2022/23 

business 

plan 

x – awaiting 

consultation 

from DHLUC 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



Administration 

Task 2021/22 2022/23 

Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Issue Annual Benefit 

Statements to active and 

deferred members 

     

P60’s distributed to pensioner 

members 

 ✓ - 

completed 

   

Recruitment of agreed 

additional resources 

 ✓ - 

ongoing 

   

Annual pension in payment and 

CARE accrual increase exercise 

 ✓ - pension 

in payment 

completed, 

Care accrual 

ongoing 

   

Annual submission of HMRC 

Event report 

✓ - 

completed 

    

Issue notices to employees for 

breaches of HMRC Annual 

Allowance limits 

     

Provision of data to actuary to 

produce financial accounting 

required for employer accounts 

 ✓ - 

completed 

   

Reconciliation of membership 

data for all employers 

✓ - 

ongoing 

✓ - 

ongoing 

   

Review and correct data errors      

Process and reconcile 

membership pay and 

contribution data for year end 

 ✓ - 

ongoing 

   

Data quality assessment for the 

Pensions Regulator 

     

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 

Core Projects for 2022/23 

 

 

1) 2022 Actuarial Valuation and associated tasks 

What is it?  

It is the formal actuarial valuation of the Fund detailing the solvency position and other financial 
metrics. It is a legal requirement of the LGPS Regulations. It determines the contribution rates 
payable by the employers to fund the cost of benefits and make good any existing shortfalls as set 
out in the separate Funding Strategy Statement. This is considered in conjunction with an 
employer risk management assessment. The exercise will include cash flow projections that can 
be used to prepare the Funds cash management and investment strategy.  

Timescales and Stages 

Effective date 31 March 2022 

Initial whole Fund results (expected) 2022/23 Q2 

Individual Employer results (expected) 2022/23 Q3  

Deadline for agreement of all contributions and sign-off 31 March 2023 

Resource and Budget Implications 

The exercise will be performed by the Funds Actuary and it will determine contribution 
requirements for all participating employers from 1 April 2023. It is a major exercise for the Fund 
and will take considerable resource from the Administration and Finance teams over 2022/23. 
Employers will be formally consulted on the funding strategy as part of the process. The Fund 
Actuary's costs in relation to this exercise are included in the 2022/23 budget. 

Current Status  

 

Current activity 

Page 38



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



 

2) Review pensions administration system contract  

 

What is it?  

The Fund has a contract with Aquila Heywood in relation to their Altair administration system 
which expires in 2023. The Fund have access to the LGPS National Frameworks, which includes a 
framework for pensions administration systems. It is envisaged that the Fund would make use of 
this framework.  

Should a new software supplier be appointed, there will be a significant amount of work required 
to migrate to the new system.  

Timescales and Stages  

Finalise national framework for pensions administration system 2020/21 Q1  

Conduct tender for CPF administration system 2022/23 Q2 to Q4  

Transition to new administration system if required June 2023  

Resource and Budget Implications  

To be led by the Head of Pensions and Pension Administration Manager. If transition to a new 
system is required, there are likely to be significant transition costs and the ongoing cost for 
systems included in the 2022/23 budget will probably change. 

Current Status  

 

Current Activity 

Project planning initiated with GCC procurement team 

• Business case being prepared regarding internal signing off process 

• Access to LGPS national framework being reviewed 

• High level project plan in draft mode. 

Target completion for the above steps 30 June 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 

3) Pensions Dashboard (including a Data Improvement Strategy) 

 

What is it?  

The Pensions Dashboard is a Government initiative first announced in the Budget 2016. The idea 
behind the Dashboard is to allow all pension savers in the UK access to view the values of all of 
their pension pots, including state pension, through one central platform. A consultation was 
undertaken by Government in early 2019 which sought views on the potential phasing of the 
introduction of the pensions dashboards as well as how the architecture, funding and governance 
arrangements would work. The legislative requirements to participate in the Pension Dashboard 
for schemes (including public sector schemes) was launched by DWP in February 2022. The actual 
timescales that will apply to public sector pension schemes are not yet known so the timescales 
below are estimated. However, in preparation for this, the Fund will embark on producing a Data 
Improvement Strategy and plan. 

Timescales and Stages  

Data Improvement Strategy 2022/23 Q2 to Q3  

Data Improvement Plan 2022/23 Q4 

Potential Pension Dashboard launch 2023/24  

Resource and Budget Implications  

The Data Improvement Strategy and Plan will be led by the Head of Pensions and the Pensions 
Administration Manager. Resource and budget implications cannot be determined until more 
detail is available, especially around the Pensions Dashboard. 

Current Status  

 

Current Activity 

Not yet commenced 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4) McCloud  

 

What is it?  

The McCloud case has highlighted that the introduction of the new CARE schemes for Firefighters 
and Judges in April 2015 were unlawful. This impacts on other public service pension schemes 
including the LGPS where the new CARE scheme from April 2014 included a statutory underpin for 
older members. Remedies are being worked through by Government to remove the inequality in 
the schemes, which will result in changes to scheme benefits some of which will be retrospective. 
From an administrative perspective the impact of McCloud will result in a change to how benefits 
are calculated for a large number of scheme members including members who have left. This is 
likely to significantly impact on administration process and systems as well as requiring a robust 
communication exercise with employers and scheme members. The additional resource/system 
requirements are likely to be significant. The remediation is subject to a Public Service Pensions 
and Judicial Offices Bill, which is currently laid before parliament. 

Timescales and Stages  

McCloud planning/impact analysis 2022/23 Q1 ongoing 

Timescales will be updated as more information becomes available.  

Resource and Budget Implications  

It will impact across all of the Administration Team. No estimated allowance for additional 
resource has been included in the 2022/23 budget at this time. Support from the pensions 
administration software provider is likely to require additional budget is also likely to be needed in 
future years as the impact is realised. 

Current Status  

 

Current Activity 

Public Service Pensions and Judicial Offices Bill now laid in statue. 

Awaiting further guidance from DHLUC on the implementation of the bill in respect of LGPS. 

 

Page 42



   
  

Gloucestershire Pension Fund   

Governance Review – Work Plan  
This action plan builds on the recommendations set out in our Governance Review report dated 9 June 2021. This is designed to be a high-level action plan setting 

out the key actions and we have added timescales to assist the Fund in monitoring progress of these actions on an ongoing basis.   

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Review of PC Constitution - produce 

report to take to  
September 2021 PC meeting with 
proposal   

Consider whether the Committee could have further  
representation from other employers and scheme members in the  
Fund. Also need to consider voting rights of these representatives.   

Completed  ✓ - agreed proposals 
taken to Constitution in 
January 2022 at Council 
in February 2022 

Review of duties of the PC  The majority of the duties of the PC are investment focused.  
Consider including a number of non-investment duties as well.  

Action is ultimately to update the PC Terms of Reference  

Completed  ✓ - agreed proposals 
taken to Constitution in 
January 2022 at Council 
in February 2022 

Develop a Fund Conflict of  
Interest Policy  

No policy currently in place.  

Fund currently relies on the Council's Conflicts of Interest Policy  

Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in 
September 2021 

Develop a Fund Risk  
Management Policy  

No policy currently in place.  

Develop a policy to provide a clearer risk management framework 
(incorporating existing risk register)  

Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in 
December 2021 

Review the Fund's Breaches log  Ensure breaches log covers all expected areas, and ensure this is 
populated and taken to PC and PB for information.  

Completed - Q3/Q4 
2021/22    

Policy was agreed by 
Committee in 
December 2021. New 
log adopted Jan 2022, 
thereby first reportable 
period will be 31 March 
2022 

P
age 43



   
  

 Governance Review policy summary  2  
  

Review the Fund's Breaches of  
Law Procedure  

We understand that this was last reviewed in 2016.  Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in 
December 2021 

  

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Update the Administering  
Authority's Discretionary Policy  

Current policy dates back to September 1999  

Due to the age of the current policy this is effectively going to be a 
brand-new policy given that so much has changed since the current 
policy was written.  

Completed  ✓ - agreed by 
Committee in 
December 2021 

Update the Fund's Governance  
Compliance Statement and  
Policy  

The current Compliance Statement is dated July 2017. We would 

anticipate this document being reviewed in conjunction with the 

Governance Policy statement which was last reviewed in February 

2020.  

We understand that an updated Compliance Statement has been 
drafted so we assume that our input would be to review the draft 
updated policy  

Q3 - Q4 2021/22   ✓ - will be brought 
to the September 
2022 meeting 

Review of Scheme of Delegation  Review Council’s Scheme of Delegation to ensure that pension fund 

matters are covered.  

Consider this in conjunction with recommendation from SAB Good 
Governance review regarding LGPS senior officer.  

Q3 - Q4 2021/22  ✓ - will be brought 
to the September 
2022 meeting 

Review the Fund's  
Communications Policy  

We understand that a review was due to be undertaken in  
2019/20 but this did not take place  

Q4 2021/22 – Q1 
2022/23  

Revised timeline - Will 
commence in Q4 
2022/Q1 2023 

Review the Fund's  
Administration Strategy  

Last reviewed in 2017  Q4 2021/22 – Q1 
2022/23  

Revised timeline Will 
commence in Q4 
2022/Q1 2023 

P
age 44



   
  

 Governance Review policy summary  3  
  

Review the Fund's Investment  
Strategy Statement  

Our report suggested some potential enhancements to the current 
policy in relation to Responsible Investment.  

As per Fund's 
business plan  

Initial stage on June 2022 
agenda 

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Develop a Fund Business  
Continuity Policy / Plan  

Expected to be included in TPR New Code.   

We understand that the Fund currently relies on the Council's approach 
to Business Continuity.  

Q3 2022/23  Revised timescale 

Develop a Fund Cyber Strategy  Expected to be included in TPR New Code.   

We understand that the Fund currently relies on the Council's approach 
to Cyber Security.  

Q4 2022 – Q1 2023  Revised timescale 

Carrying out a review of Fund's 

practices against TPR's New  
Code of Practice    

As part of best practice, we would expect the Administering Authority 
to carry out a regular review of their practices against the New Code.  

Awaiting code of 
practice from TPR  

On hold 

Develop a Fund Data  
Improvement Policy  

We understand that the Fund do the common / scheme specific 
scoring through Aquila Heywood but currently no formal data 
improvement policy or plan is in place. We recommend that having a 
Data Improvement Policy is best practice.  

Forms part of core 
projects for 2022/23 
business plan 

On schedule 

Develop a Fund Data  
Improvement Plan  

  Forms part of core 
projects for 2022/23 
business plan  

On schedule 

P
age 45



   
  

 Governance Review policy summary  4  
  

Implementation of new Training  
Strategy  

A Training Strategy was put in place in April 2021. Ensure successful 

implementation of this Strategy and the associated training plans.  

As part of this we would recommend that a training needs analysis is 
carried out to identify any gaps.  

Ongoing  ✓ - training needs 
analysis undertaken and 
training plan established 
and agreed by 
Committee in September 
2021.  
 
 

Action  Reason   Timescales  

 

Current 
action/comment 

Development of Fund's own 

identity separate from the  
Council  

This could include the Fund having different branding to the Council.  

Creation of a separate Fund website or more distinctly separate section 
within the Council's website.  

Ongoing   

Ensuring all of the Fund's policies 
and procedures are easy to access 
from Fund's website / section of 
Council's website  

Currently not all of the Fund's policies and procedures are easy to find 
on the Fund's section of the Council's website  

Ongoing   

Increase the number of Pension  
Board meetings each year  

We don't think that the current approach of having two meetings a year 

is sufficient.  

We note that in the March 2021 meeting it was proposed that the PB 
moves to quarterly meetings.  

Completed   

  

  

  

P
age 46



P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

P
age 50

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 54



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 57

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

P
age 59



Commercial in confidence

14

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

•

P
age 60



Commercial in confidence

15

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 61



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 62

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 63



Commercial in confidence

18

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 64



Commercial in confidence

19

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 65



Commercial in confidence

j

j

P
age 66



P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item 6 

 

Pension Board 
21 July 2022 

 

Risk Register 
 

Report of the Head of Pensions 
 
 

Summary 
 
In accordance with the Risk Management policy agreed by Committee on 3 December 2021, 
progress and activity in managing risks will continue to be monitored and recorded on a risk 
register and key information will be provided on a quarterly basis to the Pension Committee 
and the Pension Board as part of the regular update reports on governance, investments 
and funding, and administration and communications.  The reporting information will 
include as a minimum: 
 

o a summarised version of the risk register   
o a summary of the main changes since the previous report 
o the Fund’s risk dashboard showing the score of all existing risks and any changes as 

part of that dashboard. 
 

Risk Evaluation 
 
The evaluation of risks is based on the Gloucestershire County Council Risk Scoring Matrix 
customized to the needs of the Fund. The assessment matrix and interpretation of risk 
exposure is detailed below. These elements are fully defined in the Risk Management Policy 
of the Fund, and for completeness I attach at appendix 1 to this report the full details   

 

Assessment of risk:               

Im
p

ac
t 

(c
o

n
se

q
u

en
ce

s)
 Insignificant Low Low Low Low Low 

    

Minor Medium Medium Low Low Low 
    

Moderate High Medium Medium Low Low 
    

Major High High Medium Medium Low 
    

Critical High High High Medium Low 
    

    
Almost 
certain 

Highly 
likely 

Probable Possible Rare 
    

    >90% 76%-90% 41% - 75% 10% - 40% <10%     

    Likelihood (probability) of risk happening     

                  

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



 

Agenda Item 6 

 

Interpretation of risk exposure     

  Level of risk Level of concern Action required   

  

High 
Very concerned, major 
consequences and high 
likelihood of happening 

Unacceptable level of risk exposure 
which requires immediate corrective 
action to be taken.  Regular monitoring 
required; at least monthly   

  

Medium 
Concerned, moderate 
consequences and possible 
occurrence 

Acceptable level of risk exposure 
subject to regular active monitoring 
measures, at least quarterly.   

  

Green 
Content, insignificant 
consequences  

Acceptable level of risk exposure 
subject to regular active monitoring 
measures, at least annually.   

 

Risk Register Review 

As part of the agreed risk management policy the new risk register format that has been 
adopted by the Fund, will provide a dashboard (heatmap) overview of the risks in the 
following 3 categories: 

• Governance 

• Funding & Investment Risks 

• Administration & Communication Risks (Operational) 

The newly formatted risk register including the dashboard is attached as appendix 2 to this 
report. 

The first stage of the move to the new risk register format was completed in March 2022 and 
reviewed the existing risk register and mapped these risks across to the new format. 

As part of the ongoing exercise the risks have been reviewed against previous rating and there 
are no material changes to risk levels since the Committee considered the risk register at its 
last meeting in March 2022. The following risks remain above their target and will remain to 
be tracked through the dashboard: 

Highlighted Risks 

o Governance 
o Risk 2 - elevated until the successful deployment of the training strategy/plan 

has been delivered and the assessment of knowledge repeated. 
o Risk 3 – elevated as per risk 2 above. 

 
o Funding & Investment 

o Risk 6 – risk remains elevated and will be reviewed once the inflation and 
interest rate risk exposure of the Fund has been reviewed, as part of the 
valuation and strategy review process. 

o Risk 8 – increased until the valuation process has been concluded and the 
potential impact reconsidered in the overall Fund context.  

 
o Operational 

Page 70



 

Agenda Item 6 

 

o Risk 2, 3 & 6 – remain at an elevated level as the recruitment plan for the 
agreed team resources is still ongoing.  

o Risk 1 – remains a specific risk in relation to working practices adopted as a 
result of the pandemic until the embedding of agile working and the review 
on processes has been undertaken. 

 

New Risks 

o Operational 
o Risk 8 – added at the request of the LPB to specifically acknowledge the risks 

around the expiration of the current pensions administration software 
contract in June 2023, to enable the risk and project to be appropriately 
monitored. 

 
Future development 
 
The risk register is a live document and will continue to evolve and be reviewed by Committee 
and Board each quarter. As part of the valuation process and as part of the proposed future 
development of the risk register, we will consider the way we evaluate and report the Funds 
risks to you.  
 
We currently report them by considering the action that leads to the risk first, and then linking 
to that we get the potential negative outcomes relating to that action. In the next iteration of 
the risk register we will consider the potential negative outcomes first and then consider all 
the actions that might lead to that outcome. This different approach should result in a more 
concise and representative risk register for the Fund. The next version of the risk register will 
be brought to Committee in September 2022.    
 
Pensions Committee review  
 
The Committee noted the Risk Register and the current elevated risks, as outlined in this report. 
It was also agreed to the addition of Operational Risk 8 at the request of the Board in relation to 
the software contract. 

 
Recommendation 
 
That the Board notes the Risk Register and the current elevated risks, as outlined in this report 
and the amendments agreed by Committee. 
 
Contact Officer 
 
Matthew Trebilcock – Head of Pensions (01452 328920) 
 

 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Evaluation and Likelihood and Impact Explanations

The following information outlines how risks are to be evaluated.  It is based on the Gloucestershire County Council Risk Scoring Matrix 
customised to the needs of the Fund

Assessment of risk:

Insignificant Low Low Low Low Low

Minor Medium Medium Low Low Low

Moderate High Medium Medium Low Low

Major High High Medium Medium Low

Critical High High High Medium Low

Almost certain Highly likely Probable Possible Rare
>90% 76%-90% 41% - 75% 10% - 40% <10%

Gloucestershire County Council's interpretation of risk exposure
Level of risk

High

Medium

Green

Criteria for assessing likelihood
potential timescale

Greater than 90%
76% to 90%

Probable 41% to 75%
10% to 40%
Less than 10%

Criteria for assessing impact
Critical Service disruption > 20 days

Critical Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Ministerial/Regulatory intervention
Public enquiry
Exceedingly negative national publicity

Major Service disruption 10-20 days 
Major Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Legal action almost certain and difficult to defend
Adverse national media coverage

Moderate Service Disruption 5-10 days
Moderate Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Legal action expected
Adverse local media coverage/lots of service user complaints

Minor Minor impact on service, typically between 1 to 4 days
Minor Financial loss (relative to the size of the Fund)
Non-compliance with regulations / standards or local procedures resulting in disciplinary action
Moderate volumes of service user complaints contained within the Fund

Insignificant Insignificant impact on service, typically no more than a couple of hours
Insignificant financial loss
Legal action possible but unlikely and defendable
Isolated service user complaints contained within the Fund

Some specific examples for each impact criteria:
Critical Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by more than 25% over a 1-month period

Delay in paying pensioners by more than 3 working days
Consistently missing both legal and Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect actual benefit calculations affecting >300 members
Formal DLUHC, Pension Regulator or Scheme Advisory Board (or other) intervention or exercise of powers. 

Major Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level 15-25% over a 1-month period
Delay in paying pensioners by more than 2 working days
Missing some legal timescales and regularly missing the Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect actual benefit calculations affecting 200-300 members

Moderate Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by 10-15% over a 1-month period
Delay in paying pensioners by 1 working day
Meeting the majority of legal timescales but missing some of the Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect benefit calculations affecting 100-200 members

Minor Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by 5-10% over a 1-month period
Delay in paying pensioners by less than1 working days
Meeting the majority of legal and Fund’s service delivery timeframe
Incorrect benefit calculations affecting 50-100 members

Insignificant Impact on assets or liabilities changing funding level by up to 5% over a 1-month period
Meeting all legal but occasionally not meeting all the Fund’s service delivery timeframes
Incorrect benefit calculations affecting up to 50 members

Criteria for assessing the difference between the current and target risk exposures:

Unacceptable level of risk exposure which requires immediate 
corrective action to be taken.  Regular monitoring required; at least 
monthly

Once in 5 to less than 10 years
Possible

Almost certain Once in 1 to less than 3 years
Highly likely

Im
pa

ct
 (c

on
se

qu
en

ce
s)

Likelihood (probability) of risk happening

Description % of risk happening       OR

Once in 10 to less than 20 years

Acceptable level of risk exposure subject to regular active 
monitoring measures, at least quarterly.

Acceptable level of risk exposure subject to regular active 
monitoring measures, at least annually.

Once in 3 to less than 5 years

Concerned, moderate 
consequences and possible 
occurance

Content, insignificant 
consequences 

Level of concern
Very concerend, major 
consequences and high 
likelihood of happening

Action required

K
The current impact and likelihood of the risk are individually no more than 2 
classifications higher than the target, and the combined difference is no more than 3 
classifications higher than the target.

L
The current impact and likelihood of the risk are individually more than 2 
classifications higher than the target, and/or the combined difference is more than 3 
classifications higher than the target.

Rare Once in 20 or more years

Symbol Description

J The current impact and likelihood of the risk are equal to, or less than, the target 
impact and likelihood.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Risk Register
All Fund Risk Heat Map and Summary of Governance Risks Number of actual risks Number of target risks

9 13

10 9 6 10 11 12

3 2 6 7 8

5 4 1 3 4 5

8 7 1 2

Likelihood Likelihood

1

1

5 4

6 2 3 1

8 7
`

Governance Risks
Funding & Investment Risks (includes accounting and 

audit)

Im
p

a
c

t

Insignificant

Major

Critical

Minor

Moderate

Rare Possible Probable Highly likely

Administration & Communication Risks

07 June 2022

Insignificant

Major

Critical
Key

New risks since the last reporting date are denoted with a blue and white 

border.

An arrow denotes a change in the risk exposure since the previous 

reporting date, with the arrow coming from the previous risk exposure.Minor

Moderate

Each risk is represented in the chart by a number in a square. 

- The number denotes the risk number on the risk register.

- The location of the square denotes the current risk exposure.

The background colour within the square denotes the target risk 

exposure.

Im
p

a
c

t

RareAlmost certain Almost certain Highly likely Probable Possible

0

11

20

0

6

25

P
age 75



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at 

risk (see 

above)

Current 

Impact

(see key)

Current 

Likelihood

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact

(see key)

Target 

Likelihood

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back on 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date
Last Updated

1

G1) Administering Authority 

unaware of structural changes in 

an employer’s membership (e.g. 

large fall in employee members, 

closing to new entrants)

- Impacts on achieving fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long 

term
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Close relationship with employers and communicate required 

standards, e.g. for submission of data

2 - Actuary may revise Rates and Adjustments certificate to increase 

employers conts between triennial valuations

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

2

G7) Lack of experience, 

knowledge, skills on the Pension 

Committee or Pension Board, 

and/or the lack of adequate 

training, resulting in a negative 

impact on governance 

arrangements within the 

Gloucestershire LGPS.

- High turnover of PC and/or board 

members

- Failure to take appropriate advice

- Poor engagement /preparation / 

commitment

- Poor oversight / lack of skills & 

knowledge

- Poor and ineffective decision 

making processes

Moderate Probable 3

1 - Training Policy, Plan and monitoring in place for PC and PB 

members. Training needs assessment now undertaken which has 

informed an appropriate training plan

2 - Range of professional advisors covering Fund responsibilities 

guiding the PC, PB and officers in their responsibilities

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2024

Delivery of training plan across the new 

cycle of Committee members and 1st 

annual assessment to determine 

training effectiveness 

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

3

G5) Lack of relevant expertise, 

knowledge, skills and resources at 

officer level in relation to 

administering the LGPS

- Non-compliance potentially 

resulting in inaccurate benefit 

calculations

- Increase in customer 

dissatisfaction and decrease in 

KPIs

- Poor oversight / lack of officer 

skills & knowledge

- Poor and ineffective decision 

making processes

Moderate Probable 3

1 - Training needs assessment carried out for each individual officer

2 - Annual training plan produced

3 - Subscription to the CIPFA K&S framework

4 - Appropriate qualified external advisers and consultants used when 

necessary

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Recruitment to post within the senior 

leadership team will provide greater 

resilience and reduce key person risk

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

4

G2) Actuarial or investment advice 

is not sought, or is not heeded, or 

proves to be insufficient in some 

way

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund Moderate Possible 1

1 - Close contact maintained with specialist advisers

2 - Advice delivered via formal meetings involving elected members 

and recorded appropriately

3 - Actuarial advice is subject to professional requirements

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

5

G3) Administering Authority fail to 

commission the Actuary to carry 

out a termination valuation for a 

departing Admission Body.

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund Moderate Possible 1

1 - Employers with Best Value contractors required to inform the Fund 

of forthcoming changes

2 - Contract periods of admission bodies monitored

3 - Regular monitoring of levels of active employees across all 

employers and further steps taken where necessary

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

6
G4) Failure to comply with the 

Myners’ Investment Principles

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund Moderate Possible 1

1 - Compliance regularly reviewed as detailed in the Investment 

Strategy statement and Governance statement Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

7
G9) Failure to comply with the 

General Data Protection 

Regulation 

- Increase in data breaches

- Negative publicity and 

reputational damage

- Potential costs/fines. 

- Complaints from members

Major Possible 3

1 - Guidance and support from GCC Information management team -

website now contains info to meet GDPR requirements 

2 - Recent Internal audit confirmed arrangements are satisfactory
Major Possible 3 J

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

8

G10) Failure to protect the Pension 

Fund's key information and data as 

a result of exploited technological 

vulnerabilities facilitated through 

malicious attack, primarily from 

external sources.

- Inability to pay member benefits

- Member complaints

- Permanent / temporary loss of 

member data

- Financial impact of restoring 

systems

Major Possible 3

1 - Anti-malware and internet security software in place

2 - Patch management policies and procedures in place

3 - Compliance with PSN

4 - Internal and external ICT security testing takes place regularly

5 - Managing user privileges

Major Possible 3 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

9

G11) Failing to adequately take 

account of, and monitor and report 

on, Environmental, Social and 

Governance ("ESG") factors, 

including Climate Change, in 

relation to the investment of the 

Funds’ assets

- Negative ESG implications 

- Financial loss
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Being a member of Brunel - ESG factors are integral to investment 

process

2 - ESG factors are considered for all Investment Manager 

appointments made by Brunel

3 - Robust process for on-going monitoring / reporting of ESG factors, 

so PC receives regular updates and assurance

4 - Adoption of Brunel Climate Change policy in January 2020

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

10

G6) Failure to internally hold 

personal data securely and keep 

pension records up-to-date and 

accurate

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund

- Members potentially paid 

incorrect benefits

- Risk of breaching GDPR 

Regulations

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Personal data and scanned member documents are maintained in a 

secure password controlled online system

2 - Documented procedures for maintaining pension records are in 

place and regularly reviewed within the admin team

3 - Procedures regularly reviewed by internal auditors

4 -Physical access controls in operation within the Pension Fund office

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

Meets target?

Objectives extracted from Governance Policy

Risk Register - Governance Risks

07/06/2022 Governance Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 03 03 2022 PC Final

P
age 76



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at 

risk (see 

above)

Current 

impact (see 

key)

Current 

likelihood 

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact (see 

key)

Target 

Likelihood 

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back on 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date
Last Updated

1

F1) Fund assets fail to deliver 

returns in line with the anticipated 

returns underpinning valuation of 

liabilities over the long-term

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities
Major Possible 3

1 - Assets invested on the basis of specialist advice, in suitably 

diversified manner, across asset classes, geographies and managers

2 - Analysis of progress at three yearly valuation for all employers

3 - Strategic asset allocation following valuation results re-examined 

by an investment specialist 

4 - Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities between valuations at whole 

fund level 

Major Possible 3 J

Long term forecasting of Strategic 

Asset Allocation ongoing by 

Independent Advisor and reported 

quarterly to Committee

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

2
F2) Inappropriate long-term 

investment strategy

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Major Possible 3

1 - Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow and actuarial estimates of 

future cash flow positions

2 -Overall investment strategy options including diversification 

considered as an integral part of the funding strategy

3 - Use of asset modelling in place

Major Possible 3 J

The new final strategic investment 

allocation and strategy was approved 

by the Pension Committee on 14th 

February 2020. Further reviews have 

taken place in January 2021 

December 2021. Further review now 

underway

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

3

F3) Fall in risk-free returns on 

Government bonds, leading to rise 

in value placed on liabilities.

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate Possible 1

1 -Stabilisation modelling at whole fund level including Inter-valuation 

monitoring

2 - Investment in bonds

3 - Strong deficit recovery plan

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

4
F4) Increasing Pension Fund 

deficit

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate Possible 1

1 - Triennial valuation plus regular update reports

2 - Regular consideration at PC meetings of investment performance 

relative to funding assumptions, funding position and strategy

3 - Strong deficit recovery plan

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

5

F5) Active investment manager 

under-performance relative to 

benchmark.

- Impacts on achieving funding 

target
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Quarterly investment monitoring analyses market performance and 

Brunel portfolios relative to their index benchmark

2 - Diversification of investments across asset classes and across 

different fund managers

3- Brunel's portfolios monitored against agreed performance targets 

and reported to PC quarterly

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

6
F6) Pay and price inflation 

significantly more than anticipated.

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate
Highly 

likely
3

1 - Focus of the valuation process on real returns on assets, net of 

price and pay increases

2 - Inter-valuation monitoring (provides early warning)

3 - Some investment in index-linked bonds

4 - Employers pay for their own salary awards

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 2 too 

high

21/09/2021 Mar 2023

Increased risk of a more inflationary 

environment is now expected, as 

Governments / central banks look to 

deal with the substantial debt burden. 

A review of the inflation and interest 

rate risks on the Fund will be reviewed 

as part of the triennial valuation 

process.

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

7
F7) Unexpected increase in 

employer’s contribution rate

- Volatility of employer contribution 

rates leading to affordability 

pressures

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Explicit stabilisation mechanism has been agreed for eligible 

employers as part of funding strategy

2 - Additional measures to limit sudden increases in contributions

3 - Discussions take place with employers regarding their ability to 

absorb rises in their contribution level                 

4 - Option to use deficit spreading and phasing in of contribution 

increases, with appropriate security / analysis

Moderate Possible 1 J

Engagement with Employer base for 

the 2022 Valuation has commenced. 

The Contribution Strategy of the Fund 

is due to come to Committee in Q2 

2022

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

8

F8) A company, without a 

guarantor, admitted to the Fund as 

an admission body may become 

financially unviable, leaving a 

significant financial deficit with the 

Fund

- Likelihood of increased 

contribution requirements falling 

back on other Fund employers

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Community admission bodies only admitted if have a funding 

guarantee from a tax-raising scheme employer 

2 - A surety bond is required by the employer to cover costs if 

company goes into liquidation

3 - Value of surety bond reviewed regularly to ensure is adequate              

Minor Possible 1 K
Current impact 1 too 

high 31/03/2019 Mar 2023

Four Admitted Bodies without 

guarantors now remain within the 

Fund. At the 2019 valuation the 

contribution rates for these employers 

were calculated using a gilts based 

investment return, resulting in higher 

contributions, partially addressing this 

risk. Further engagement and review 

of the current position has commenced 

with these Employers ahead of the 

2022 valuation.

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

9
F/D1) Pensioners living longer, 

thus increasing cost to Fund.

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Minor Possible 1

1 - Mortality assumptions set with some allowance for future 

increases in life expectancy

2 - Life expectancy assumptions set using ClubVita - a specialised 

longevity firm

3 - Encouragement of employers concerned at costs to promote a 

later retirement culture 

Minor Possible 1 J

Fund utilises specific Gloucestershire 

related data supplied by Club Vita 

analysis. 

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

10

F/D2) Maturing Fund – i.e. 

proportion of actively contributing 

employees declines relative to 

retired employees leading to the 

possibility of there being 

insufficient liquid funds available 

to pay liabilities as they fall due

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund
Moderate Possible 1

1 - Monitored at each valuation - seeking monetary deficit amounts 

rather than % of pay

2 - Inter-valuation monitoring of level of active members, both at whole 

fund level and by individual employer

3 - Regular review of investment strategy 

4 - Regular review of how cash flow positive the fund is (significant 

cash flow modelling recently undertaken by the Actuary)

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

11

F/D3, F/D4 and F/D5) Adverse 

demographic changes within 

employers, such as changing 

patterns of early retirements, 

reductions in payroll and more ill-

health retirements than expected

- Volatility of employer contribution 

rates leading to affordability 

pressures

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Employers are charged the cost of non-ill-health retirements 

upfront following each individual decision

2 - Employers required to pay deficit recovery contributions as fixed 

monetary amounts rather than as a % of pay.

3 - Each employer’s ill-health experience monitored on an ongoing 

basis, and may be charged additional contributions if this exceeds the 

assumed number of ill-health retirements. Ill health insurance is 

available to be purchased by individual employers

Moderate Possible 1 J

IHLI procedure introduced in April 

2020 applicable to all highest risk 

employers. All other employers 

covered under a central policy unless 

formally opt out, under procedures 

agreed by PC in September 2019. To 

date 3 employers have opted out

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

12

F/D6) Adverse effect on the 

Fund’s investment strategy and 

employer contributions if large 

numbers of active members are 

outsourced on a “closed” (to new 

entrants) basis

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Moderate Possible 1

1 - Advice provided by the actuary on likely impact on investment out-

performance assumptions and employer contributions

2 - Monitoring of levels of outsourcings on a 'closed' basis and advise 

employers of implications

3 - Regular review of investment strategy and strategic asset 

allocation

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

13

F/D7) Transfers out of the Fund 

into DC schemes due to 

introduction of "Freedom & 

Choice" resulting in a change in 

funding level

- Impacts on achieving fully 

funded pension liabilities Minor Possible 1

1 - Advice provided by the actuary on the proportion of active and 

deferred members over 55, and the maximum exposure of the Fund to 

these transfers

2 - Consideration given to impact on funding level on different possible 

levels of take up

Minor Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

Meets target?

Risk Register - Funding & Investment Risks (includes accounting and audit)

Objectives extracted from Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy Statement:

07/06/2022 FundingInvestment Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 03 03 2022 PC Final

P
age 77



Risk 

no:
Risk Overview (this will happen) Risk Description (if this happens)

Strategic 

objectives at 

risk (see above)

Current 

impact (see 

key)

Current 

likelihood 

(see key)

Current 

Risk 

Status

Internal controls in place

Target 

Impact (see 

key)

Target 

Likelihood 

(see key)

Target 

Risk 

Status

Date Not 

Met Target 

From

Expected 

Back On 

Target

Further Action and Owner Risk Manager
Next review 

date

Last 

Updated

1

A/R6) COVID-19 Pandemic 

having a detrimental impact to the 

Pension Fund service provided to 

members and/or to the collections 

of pension fund contributions and 

investments.

- New retirees may not receive 

accurate and timely benefits

- Contributions may not be 

received and invested

- New investments may not be 

actioned

Moderate
Highly 

likely
3

1 - Minimal service impact within finance and investment team due to 

remote working

2 - Due to paper-based nature of admin service, team split in two 

rotating home working with office working

3 - Future agile working requirements are being assessed for the 

admin team with a view to be rolled out in Q2 2022

Moderate Probable 3 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Review of operational process will be 

undertaken to identify efficiencies that 

can be achevied, whilst ensuring 

robust process remain.

As part of the administration system 

review, system support will be review 

in relation to further process efficiency 

gains that can be acheived.

Head of 

Pension Fund
16/06/2022 07/06/2022

2

A/R1.1) Significant additional 

costs resulting from changes to 

national pension requirements 

and/or HMRC rules e.g. public 

sector pensions reform, and/or 

more complex regulations 

requiring increased administration 

resources

- Inefficient management of the 

Fund Moderate Probable 3

1 - The Fund considers government consultation papers and 

comments where appropriate

2 -Results of recent forms built into the valuation

3 -Changes to contribution rates or benefit levels carefully 

communicated with membership to minimise potential opt outs or 

other adverse actions

Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Expected regulations in relation to 

McCloud, and additional wide 

reaching consultation on pooling 

guidance and levelling up white paper, 

that may impact on the Fund

Head of 

Pension Fund
16/06/2022 07/06/2022

3

A/R1.2) Under resourcing of 

Pension Administration staff 

resulting in a deterioration of 

performance against key 

performance indicators and/or 

intervention from the Pensions 

Regulator.

- Increase in member complaints 

due to standards not being met. 

- Increase in workloads if 

additional performance 

improvement activities needed. 

- Negative publicity. 

- Potential adverse financial 

implications

Moderate
Highly 

likely
3

1 - Additional Pension Officers recruited to improve KPIs

Moderate Probable 3 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Recruitment ongoing. 2 x Group 

Pension Leaders post filled. 

3 x Lead Pension Officer posts 

currently being interviewed to.

Pension Investment & Accounting 

Manager post now out to advert

Head of 

Pension Fund
16/06/2022 07/06/2022

4

A/R2) Failure to collect and 

account for contributions from 

employers and employees on time

- Potential for TPR to intervene. 

- Requirement to report on 

breaches log

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Monitoring and reconciliation of contributions carried out monthly

2 - Robust debt management process to recover late payments Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

5

A/R5) Failure to undertake a full 

reconciliation of Guaranteed 

Minimum Pensions records held 

on the Altair system with those 

held by HMRC.

- Non-compliance

- Additional financial costs

- Member dissatisfaction leading 

to complaints

Moderate Possible 1

1 - A detailed reconciliation procedure is underway - resulting in a 

significant reduction in potential GMP liabilities Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

6

A/R4) Having inadequate 

resource to provide sufficient 

input to the oversight of the 

Brunel to ensure it operates 

efficiently and effectively

- Reputational damage

- Detrimental impact on Fund if 

Brunel doesn't operate efficiently

Moderate Probable 3
1 - Future recruitment of Pension Investment and Accounting 

Manager to provide greater resilience
Moderate Possible 1 K Current likelihood 1 too 

high

03/03/2022 Mar 2023

Recruitment to post within the senior 

leadership team will provide greater 

resilience and reduce key person risk

Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

7
A/R3) Loss of funds through fraud 

or misappropriation

- Significant reputational damage

- Additional financial costs

- Member dissatisfaction leading 

to complaints

Moderate Possible 1

1 - Documented checking procedures and processes in place, and 

staff trained on implementing them

2 - Multiple authorisation levels for claims and payments

3 - Internal Auditors carry out regular reviews

Moderate Possible 1 J
Head of 

Pension Fund
23/09/2022 07/06/2022

Risk Register - Operational Risks

Objectives extracted from Administration Strategy and Communications Strategy:

Meets target?

07/06/2022 Operational Gloucester PF Risk Register - Aon v1 - 03 03 2022 PC Final

P
age 78



The Gloucestershire Pension Fund - Pension Board 
 
All Public Sector Pension schemes were required under the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 to set 
up a Pension Board with effect from 2015/16 to assist the administering authorities of their Pension 
scheme in ensuring compliance with Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and other pension 
regulations. 
 
The County Council, as administering authority of the Gloucestershire Pension Fund agreed the 
terms of reference of the Pension Board in February 2015 and amended them during 2019/20. The 
terms of reference are included within the Fund's Governance Policy document, which can be found 
on the Funds website and in the 2021/22 Annual Report. 
 
Under the constitution, the Board shall provide an annual report to the Pension Committee and then 
to a full meeting of Gloucestershire County Council. The report will include information on the  
business conducted by the Pension Board with any risks or concerns identified. The report will also 
be published on the Pension Fund’s website. This report meets that requirement for the 2021/22 
financial year, covering the work from the July 2021, October 2021, January 2022 and April 2022 
Board meetings.    
 
Board Membership and Attendance 
 
During the year the Board received the resignation of Paul Jones as a Scheme Employer 
Representative. Expressions of Interest from Scheme Employers was sought and Colin Williams from 
the Lower Severn Internal Drainage Board has been appointed to the Board with effect from June 
2022.   
 

 Meeting attendance 

28 July 2021 19 October 
2021 

19 January 
2022 

27 April 
2022 

Scheme Employer 
Representatives 

    

Annette Benson (University of 
Gloucestershire)   ✓ ✓ 

Paul Jones (Cheltenham Borough 
Council) *resigned position August 2021    

 

Cllr Stephen Hirst 
(Gloucestershire County Council) ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

     

Scheme Member 
Representatives 

   
 

John Abbott ✓ ✓ ✓  

Michael Hunt ✓ ✓ ✓  

Jon Topping ✓ ✓ ✓  

 
All meetings were chaired by the Independent non-voting chair, Sean Collins, Head of Pensions from 
the Oxfordshire Pension Fund. 
 
In addition to attendance at Board Meetings, members of the Pension Board are provided with 
training opportunities in accordance with the training strategy and training plan. Members of the 
Pension Board are also sent all agenda papers for the Pension Committee meetings, which they can 

Page 79

Agenda Item 7



attend as observers. The minutes of the Pension Board are reported to the next Pension Committee. 
All meetings in 2021/22 have taken place virtually.  
 
Work Programme 
 
The Board receives the following items in respect of its key responsibilities at every meeting: 
 

• Operational update on funding levels and investment activities  

• Risk Register 

• Pension Administration Report 

• Business Plan update 
 
The Board received the following additional reports at its meetings: 
 

• 28 July 2021 
o Governance Review 

 

• 19 October 2021 
o Annual Report 2020/21 (inc financial statements) 
o LGPS Benchmarking 
o Fund Conflicts of Interest Policy 
o Pensions Committee Constitution 

 

• 19 January 2022 
o Revised Investment Strategy Statement 
o Breaches of Law policy 
o Administering Authority Discretions Policy 
o Proposals for Pension Arrangements for Outsourced Services 

 

• 27 April 2022 
o Public Service Pensions Act Section 13 report 
o 2022 valuation – Actuarial Assumptions 
o Fund Business Plan 2022/23  

 
The Board particularly welcomed the work of an independent Governance Review by AON and the 
associated work plan that was agreed and resulted in a number of policy reviews, which have been 
brought back throughout 2021/22. 
 
Future Work Programme    
 
The key responsibilities as set out above will continue to be covered by the Board in 2022/23, 
including the review of the Annual Report and Business Plan.  
 
The Board will continue to monitor the delivery of the agreed the workplan as a result of the 
recommendations provided by the Governance Review. 
 
Another key focus area for the Board in 2022/23 will be the delivery for the 2022 triennial valuation. 
The Board will be invited to provide comments into the review of the Funding Strategy Statement 
which will determine the principles to be followed in the valuation. 
 

Page 80



Finally, the Board will look to support the Committee in delivering the other core projects contained 
in the business plan for 2022/23, which are;  
 

• the review of the pensions administration system contract 

• the Pensions dashboard (including a data improvement strategy) 

• the McCloud judgement.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



Board Members Training 2021/22      Appendix 
 
 
Annette Benson  Brunel Investor Day – Session 1   27 September 2021 
Annette Benson  LGA Fundamentals – Day 1   12 October 2021 
Annette Benson  LGA Fundamentals – Day 2   9 November 2021 
Annette Benson  LGA Fundamentals – Day 3   2 December 2021 
Annette Benson  2022 Funding Strategy Review: an introduction 19 January 2022 
Annette Benson  Club Vita – Longevity training   27 April 2022 
Jon Topping  Actuarial Training    19 October 2021 
Jon Topping  LGA Fundamentals – Day 1   26 October 2021 
Jon Topping  LGA Fundamentals – Day 2   23 November 2021 
Jon Topping  LGA Fundamentals – Day 3   15 December 2021 
Jon Topping  2022 Funding Strategy Review: an introduction 19 January 2022 
John Abbott  Brunel Investor Day – Session 1   27 September 2021 
John Abbott  Actuarial Training    19 October 2021 
John Abbott  LGA Fundamentals – Day 1   26 October 2021 
John Abbott  LGA Fundamentals – Day 2   23 November 2021 
John Abbott  LGA Fundamentals – Day 3   15 December 2021 
John Abbott  2022 Funding Strategy Review: an introduction 19 January 2022 
John Abbott  Club Vita – Longevity training   27 April 2022 
Michael Hunt  Brunel Investor Day – Session 1   27 September 2021 
Michael Hunt  Brunel Investor Day – Session 2   6 October 2021  
Michael Hunt  Actuarial Training    19 October 2021 
Michael Hunt  LGA Fundamentals – Day 1   26 October 2021 
Michael Hunt  LGA Fundamentals – Day 2   9 November 2021 
Michael Hunt  2022 Funding Strategy Review: an introduction 19 January 2022 
Cllr Stephen Hirst  Actuarial Training    19 October 2021 
Cllr Stephen Hirst  LGA Fundamentals – Day 1   26 October 2021 
Cllr Stephen Hirst  LGA Fundamentals – Day 2   23 November 2021 
Cllr Stephen Hirst  LGA Fundamentals – Day 3   15 December 2021 
Cllr Stephen Hirst  2022 Funding Strategy Review: an introduction 19 January 2022 
Cllr Stephen Hirst  Club Vita – Longevity training   27 April 2022 
 
 

Page 82



 

Agenda Item 7 

 

Pension Board 
21 July 2022 

 

Board Annual Report 2021-22 
 

Report of the Head of Pensions 
 
 

Summary 
 

Under the constitution, the Board shall provide an annual report to the Pension 
Committee and then to a full meeting of Gloucestershire County Council. The report will 
include information on the business conducted by the Pension Board with any risks or 
concerns identified. The report will also be published on the Pension Fund’s website.  

 

The draft report, attached at Appendix 1, meets that requirement for the 2021/22 
financial year, covering the work from the July 2021, October 2021, January 2022 and April 
2022 Board meetings.   

 

The report provides details of the constitution of the Board, the respective Employer and 
Member representatives and their attendance at the meetings held. 

 

The annual report provides an overview of the items received and reviewed by the Board 
at its meetings in 2021/22, with additional commentary on the key items that the Board 
supported and continue to support, such as the Training Strategy and the Governance 
Review. 

 

It also provides an indication of the future work programme for the Board for 2022/23, 
which will focus on the triennial valuation, governance review and the Funds core projects 
within the business plan for 2022/23. 

 

 

Recommendation 

The Board are recommended to 

1. Provide any feedback on the draft Annual Report, attached at Appendix 1 
2. Approve the Board Annual Report 2021-22, subject to any feedback received in 1) 

above. 
 

 

Contact Officer 
 
Matthew Trebilcock – Head of Pensions (01452 328920) 

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 85

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 99

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Pension Board Notes
	4 Pension Committee Draft Minutes
	5 Gloucestershire Pension Fund Quarterley Update - Part 1
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 1 - Funding Update at 31 March 2022
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 2 - Investment Performance
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 3 - Strategic Asset Allocation
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 4 - Pensions Admin Summary
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 5 - Business Plan
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 6 - Governance Review Work Plan
	Agenda Item 5 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 1 - Appendix 7 - Audit Plan

	6 Risk Register
	Agenda Item 6 - Risk Register - Appendix 1 - Assessment Key
	Agenda Item 6 - Risk Register - Appendix 2 - Risk Register

	7 Board Annual Report 2021-22
	Agenda Item 7 - Board Annual Report 2021-22

	9 Draft Exempt Minutes of Pension Committee
	10 Gloucestershire Pension Fund Quarterly Update - Part 2
	Agenda Item 10 - Gloucestershire Pension Fund Update - Part 2 - Appendix 1 - SAA Portfolio Modelling Analysis


